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VILLAGE NATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 
ACN 158 332 284 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

Chairman’s Report 
I am pleased to report that in the 12 months to 30 June 2020, Village National Holdings Limited (“the 
company”) and its controlled entities (“the group”) posted a higher operating profit than in any 12 month 
period since the Group was formed in 2012. 

The acquisition of the OICS group of companies was settled on 28 May 2019 and this period is the first full year 
period with both Companies combined. As we continue to integrate the business, we are realising the cost 
saving synergies that we anticipated.  

The initial stage of financial integration resulted in changing our financial year end to the fiscal year end to 
align our group companies as well as retrospectively lining up audited accounts for those year ends going back 
a further 2 years. This has all now occurred.  

Our care and respect for our staff and our community engagement is heading in the right direction. Group 
Safety performance this year saw a TRIFR of 0.00 and a FAIFR of 3.2 in June, trending in the right direction 
below the industry recognised standard of 4.0. Our indigenous engagement continues to grow with our
business employing 8 FTE Indigenous employees at June 30 spread across Queensland an Northern Territory 
operations. Our local spend continues to be a focus with 100% of our purchasing now coming from within a 
300km radius of our locations with an aim to further reduce these miles in FY21.  

Following the acquisition, the Village National Group now consists of: 

Coal Country Village – Moranbah 
In the heart of Moranbah, in the growing Bowen Basin, our village currently has 349 rooms on site (after 
instillation of 69 rooms completed in May 2020). CCV supplies accommodation to the metallurgical coal miners 
in the region as well as services contractors and other travellers.  

Pritchard Road Country Resort – Emerald 
Pritchard Road Resort is located close to the centre of Emerald offering 140 rooms in a resort style setting. This 
site caters to travellers and workers alike with local coal miners being a large source of revenue.  

OICS Catering and Camp Rental 
OICS is a mobile camp accommodation business servicing the oil and gas and mining sector in remote areas.  
Over the year OICS have supplied accommodation and meals in 52 camps nationally to most major operators 
in the CSG and conventional gas sectors.  

Revenue from operations were $57.6m for the 12-month period was above of the $50.5m budgeted.  
Revenue from the acquisition of OICS contributed $43.1m against budget of $36.7m and the former 
Village National Group generated revenue of $14.4m in the 12-month period against budget of $13.7m. 
Net Profit before tax for the FY20 12-month period of $3.4m, was less than our full year FY19 profit of 
(including 12 months results for the  OICS Group) $6.2m. The FY19 results includes a $3.1m impairment 
reversal. The FY19 profit after adjusting for the impairment reversal is $3.1m.  

In Queensland, the resources sector adds more than $1 billion in value a week, adding $74.3 billion in value in 
2018-19 alone, according to the Queensland Resources Council economic data. One in seven jobs in 
Queensland is supported by the resource sector.  

At Village National the FY20 year revenues were up 36% over the prior year. The strength of the sector is 
driven primarily by metallurgical coal which was worth $52.5 billion in 2018-19.  

Through the Covid-19 Pandemic our business has continued to operate at good capacity with some sites 
requiring additional Village National services to maintain operations. Largely due to VN management’s quick 
response our operations implemented management plans that ensured our customers were (and continue to 
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VILLAGE NATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 
ACN 158 332 284 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

be) safe and our clients have been satisfied with the risk mitigation strategies that we implemented and 
continue to do so.  

In our areas of operations Coal Mining approvals have continued into FY20 most notably with Olive Downs 
Pembroke Resources, Stanmore Isaac Plains and Glencore Valeria. Gregory Crinum and Minerva mines 
operated by Sojitz is now coming out of care and maintenance.  Further development in those areas continues 
to create demand for accommodation and we are well placed to meet the demand. 

With the expansion in the coal sector in Queensland and particularly in the Bowen Basin, Australia’s largest 
coal reserves, we have been increasing our rooms to meet the demand. Our installation of 69 rooms occurred 
in May 2020 and are now fully occupied. We have an additional 32 rooms currently being built and will be able
to be utilised before December 2020. 

The Development Application before Central Highlands Regional Council for the installation of an additional 36 
rooms continues to be considered. We are hopeful of a positive outcome here. 

Oil and Gas operators have taken a more conservative approach to exploration given the downturn in 
petroleum pricing due to Covid-19 pandemic but the OICS business continues to operate strongly in CSG and
conventional production sector operations. OICS is exposed to Origin, Santos and Shell production and 
exploration projects.  

12 months in Review 
Whilst the period only covers 12 months, the achievements have been substantial: 

 Continued integration of Village National and OICS systems

 Adding resources to our high performing management team to support the business

 Installation of 69 rooms at Coal Country opened May 2020

 Ordered build of 32 new rooms for Coal Country to be installed Dec 2020

 Retrospective audit of FY 2019 and FY 2018 Financial year

Focus for 2021 
 Roll out of new management and finance systems building for growth, consolidating, automating

with a positive business case for change

 Growth of high return assets in Fixed and Mobile camps

 Building new capabilities and offerings to existing customers

As we continue to improve the group’s performance, the Board once again acknowledges our great team of 
people who work to create a welcoming environment in the mining sector. In the past 6 months, I have spent 
a lot of time in the field, visiting our recently acquired mobile camp sites and I am very pleased to report the 
remarkable culture of the dedicated people working in the remote locations. 
I feel very comfortable going forward that due to the strength of our people, we are very well positioned to 
meet the demand the sector is experiencing. 

Noel J Griffin 
8 October 2020 
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VILLAGE NATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ACN 158 332 284 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

The directors present their report together with the financial report on the consolidated entity (referred to 
hereafter as the ‘Group’) consisting of Village National Holdings Limited (referred to hereafter as the 
‘Company’ or ‘parent entity’) and its controlled entities, for the year ended 30 June 2020 and auditor's report 
thereon. 

Directors’ names 

The names of the directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are:  

Noel J Griffin (Chairman) 

Richard J Nelson  

Brett McDonald   

The directors have been in office since the start of the year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated. 

Principal activities 

The principal activities of the Group during the financial year was providing accommodation solutions to key 
commodity and resources organisations. 

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year. 

Significant changes in state of affairs 

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of entities in the Group during the year, other 
than those entities identified for voluntary deregistration. These entities are disclosed at Note 27 to the 
financial statements. 

After balance date events 

Other than the selective Share Buy Back disclosed at Note 31 to the financial statements, no matters or 
circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly 
affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Group in future 
financial years. 

Likely developments  

There are no likely developments to be reported. 

Environmental issues 

The Group's operations are subject to environmental regulations under the laws of the Commonwealth, States 
or Territories. No incidents of non-compliance have been recorded and the Directors are not aware of any 
environmental issues, which have had, or are likely to have, a material impact on the Group’s business.  
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VILLAGE NATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ACN 158 332 284 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Results 

The profit of the Group for the year after providing for income tax amounted to $3,400,588. (2019:$4,867,836) 

The current year results within the consolidated financial statements are for the twelve months ended 30 June 
2020. The comparative results within the consolidated financial statements reflect a full twelve month trading 
results for the original Village National Holdings Group and for the period 29 May to 30 June 2019 the OICS 
Group, being from the acquisition date of that Group.  

For comparison purposes the below table compares the 30 June 2020 results with a twelve months ended 30 
June 2019.  This comparison assumes the OICS Group was part of Village National Holdings Group for the full 
12 months ended 30 June 2019. The Directors acknowledge that the OICS Group was audited independently by 
Ernst & Young for the full year to 30 June 2019. The year ended 30 June 2019 results disclosed below, have 
been compiled by management from audited financial statements. 

30 June 2020 30 June 2019 

Total Revenue  57,683,885 42,423,968 

Less: expenses 

Materials and consumables used (22,658,608) (16,048,100) 

Depreciation and amortisation (1,273,880) (842,355) 

Employee benefits expense  (23,140,091) (17,536,133) 

Occupancy expenses  (1,227,953) (1,297,639) 

Finance Costs   (1,057,980) (569,310) 

Revaluation of assets (450,000) 3,655,402 

Loss on disposal of assets - (17,682)

Other expenses  (2,878,761) (3,521,947) 

Total Expenses  (52,687,273) (36,177,764) 

Profit before tax 4,996,612 6,246,204 

The events of COVID-19 have not had a direct impact on the Group other than the cost of providing additional 
COVID-19 measures for customers. These additional costs are directly chargeable to customers. 

The Group continued to engage in its principal activity, the results of which are disclosed in the attached 
financial statements. Information on the operations and financial position of the Group and its business 
strategies and prospects is set out in the Chairperson’s Report, which is included within this report.   

Dividends paid or recommended 

No dividends were paid or declared since the start of the financial year. No recommendation for payment of 
dividends has been made. 
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VILLAGE NATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ACN 158 332 284 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Information on 
directors  
Noel J Griffin

Non-Executive Chairman; Interim Managing Director 

Experience and 
expertise 

Noel has extensive experience in management, operation and ownership of 
transport and agricultural businesses. From 1982 to 1995, Noel was Managing 
Director of Refrigerated Roadways Pty Ltd, which at one stage was the largest 
refrigerated carrier in Australia. The business was sold to TNT in 1995. Noel was a 
major shareholder and Managing Director of Table Grape Growers Pty Ltd from 
1997 to 2003 and has served as a Director on several unlisted and listed companies. 
Noel was also a director of Centrepoint Alliance Finance Ltd from 2005 to 2014. 

Special 
responsibilities 

Chairman of the Board 

Interest in shares and 
options 

Ordinary shares - Village National Holdings Limited - 45,681,685 

Richard J Nelson 
FAICD 

Non-Executive Director 

Experience and 
expertise 

Richard was a founder of Centrepoint Finance Group in 1982, which then grew to 
become one of Australia’s largest commercial finance brokers. In 2005 it merged 
with Alliance Finance to form the ASX listed Group Centrepoint Alliance. Richard 
served as Managing Director of this business until 2007 when he became the non-
executive Deputy Chairman. In 2008, he assumed the role of non-executive 
Chairman until his retirement in 2015. Richard brings strong financial and business 
analysis skills to Village National. He is a director of a number of unlisted companies. 

Special 
responsibilities 

Audit Committee Chairman, Remuneration Committee 

Interest in shares and 
options 

Ordinary shares - Village National Holdings Limited - 13,448,480 

Brett McDonald 
FDIA, GAICD BT 
(Surveying), AD 
Engineering Civ B&C, 
Qld Builders Licence 
(Low Rise) 

Non-Executive Director 

Experience and 
expertise 

Currently Queensland Operations Manager for Sekisui House.  Brett has a career of 
experience in Property, Projects, Construction, Engineering, Telecommunication, 
Operations and Maintenance and Manufacturing. Brett was previously the President 
of Australasia for Red Sea Housing Services where he organised the procurement 
and modular construction of a 14,000 person camp in Malaysia and a 432 person 
camp on Manus Island. 

Special 
responsibilities 

Remuneration Committee 

Interest in shares and 
options 

Nil 
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VILLAGE NATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ACN 158 332 284 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Stephen Lonergan
BBus CPA FAICD 

Company Secretary 

Experience and 
expertise 

Company secretary for 3 businesses over the last 12 years. 

Current Chief Financial Officer 

Interest in shares and 
options 

Nil 

Meetings of directors 

During the financial year, 12 meetings of directors (including committees of directors) were held. Attendances 
by each director during the year were as follows: 

Number eligible to attend Number attended 

Noel Griffin 12 12 

Richard J Nelson 12 12 

Brett McDonald 12 12 

Remuneration Report (audited) 

Remuneration policy 

The remuneration policy of Village National Holdings Limited has been designed to align key management 
personnel (KMP) objectives with shareholder and business objectives by providing a fixed remuneration 
component and offering specific long-term incentives based on key performance areas affecting the Group's 
financial results. The Board of Village National Holdings Limited believes the remuneration policy to be 
appropriate and effective in its ability to attract and retain the best key management personnel to run and 
manage the Group, as well as create goal congruence between directors, executives and shareholders. 

The report is structured as : 

(a) Key management personnel (KMP) covered in this report

(b) Remuneration policy and link to performance

(c) Elements of remuneration

(d) Link between remuneration and performance

(e) Remuneration expense for executive KMP

(f) Contractual arrangements for executive KMP

(g) Non-executive director arrangements

(h) Other transactions with KMPs and their related entities, and

(i) Shareholdings of KMPs
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VILLAGE NATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ACN 158 332 284 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

(a) Key management personnel covered in this report

Non-executive directors 
Noel J Griffin 
Richard J Nelson 
Brett McDonald  
Graeme M Yukich (resigned 31 May 2019) 

Executive key management personnel 
Andrew Hudson (Chief Executive Officer, commenced 28 May 2019) 
Stephen Lonergan (Chief Finance Officer and Company Secretary, commenced 16 March 2020) 
David Franklyn (until 31 December 2018) 

(b) Remuneration policy and link to performance

Our remuneration committee is made up of non-executive directors. The committee reviews and determines 
the remuneration policy and structure to ensure it remains aligned to business needs and meets the following 
remuneration principles:  

 Competitive and reasonable, enabling the company to attract and retain key talent

 Aligned to the company’s strategic and business objectives and the creation of shareholder value

 Transparent and easily understood; and

 Acceptable to shareholders

Element Purpose Performance 
Metric 

Potential Value Changes for 
FY2021 

Fixed 

remuneration 

Provide 
competitive 
market salary 
including 
superannuation 
and non-monetary 
benefits  

Nil Positioned at 
market rate 

Reviewed in line 
with market 
positioning, and a 
0% increase was
agreed.   

Short-term 
incentives (‘STI’) 

Reward for 
monthly 
performance 

Performance on 
safety, profit, 
growth, diversity 
and integration 

CEO up to 40% and 
CFO 30% of gross 
salary as a bonus 
on meeting KPIs  

Previous KPIs were 
met and the 40% 
bonus will be paid 
to CEO.  

Long-term 
incentives (‘LTI’) 

Alignment to long 
term shareholder 
value 

To be determined CEO: not  
quantifiable at this 
date 

To be agreed. 
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VILLAGE NATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ACN 158 332 284 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

(c) Elements of remuneration

(i) Fixed annual remuneration (FR)
Executives may receive their fixed remuneration as cash, or cash with non-monetary benefits such
as salary sacrifice and provision of a motor vehicle. FR is reviewed annually, or on promotion. It is
benchmarked against market data for comparable roles in companies in a similar industry and
with similar market capitalisation. The committee aims to position executives at or near the
median, with flexibility to take into account capability, experience, and value to the organisation
and performance of the individual. For most executives, superannuation is included in FR. In the
2020 financial year, no remuneration increases were given to executive KMP.

(ii) Short-term incentives

Feature Description 

Max opportunity  CEO: 40% of gross salary 

Performance metrics Performance on safety, profit, growth, diversity 
and integration. 

Delivery of STI  100% of STI paid in cash following Board approval 

Board Discretion The Board will determine if the KPIs are met and 
approves the payment of the STI.  

(iii) Long-term incentives
To be determined

(d) Link between remuneration and performance

During the year ended 30 June 2020, a provision was raised for a possible bonus which will be linked
to performance. Remuneration policies related to STIs and LTIs are currently being determined.

(e) Remuneration expenses for executive KMP
The following table shows details of the remuneration expense recognised for the Group’s executive
key management personnel for the current and previous financial year measured in accordance with
the requirements of accounting standards.

Fixed Remuneration Variable Remuneration 

Name Year Cash 
Salary 

$ 

Non- 
monetary 
benefits 

$ 

AL & 
LSL 

$ 

Post 
employment 

benefits 

$ 

Cash 
Bonus 

$ 

Shares 

$ 

Option
s 

$ 

Total 

$ 

Performance 
related 

Andrew Hudson 
(commenced 
28 May 2019) 

June 
2020 

328,104 - 25,533 23,358 140,000 - - 516,995 25% 

June 
2019 

28,275  - 1,204 2,686  12,000  
- - - -

44,165 27% 

Stephen Lonergan 
(commenced 
16/03/2020) 

June 
2020 

63,224 - 4,863 6,006 - - - 74,093 -

June 
2019 

- - - - - - ` - - -

David Franklyn 
(resigned 31 
Dec 2018)  

June 
2020 

- - - - - - - - -

June 
2019 

100,000 - 27,933 35,224 260,746 - - 423,903 62% 

Total KMP 
remuneration 

June 
2020 

403,328 - 30,396 29,364 140,000 -
-

- - 591,088 22% 

June 
2019 

128,275 - 29,137 37,910 272,746 -
-

-
-

468,068 58% 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

(f) Contractual arrangements with executive KMPs

Andrew Hudson has a remuneration package of $350,000 with additional STI equal to 40% of 
remuneration for meeting agreed KPIs. This excludes any accrual for annual leave and long service 
leave not taken during the financial year. The agreement has no fixed term and six months notice is 
required to terminate. In addition to standard entitlements on cessation of employment, $150,000 
will be paid as consideration for restraint. 

Stephen Lonergan has a remuneration package of $240,000 with additional STI equal to 30% of
remuneration for meeting agreed KPIs. This excludes any accrual for annual leave and long service 
leave not taken during the financial year. The agreement has no fixed term and six months notice is 
required to terminate.     

(g) Non-executive director arrangements

Non-executive directors receive a board fee exclusive of superannuation between $40,000 and
$50,000. They do not receive performance-based pay or additional fees for chairing committees. 
The chairman receives a fee of $80,800 per annum excluding superannuation. Fees are reviewed 
annually by the board taking into account comparable roles. The current base fees were reviewed 
with effect from 1 January 2019 and are reviewed annually.  

Name Year Fee 

$ 

Superannuation 

$ 

Share 
based 

payments 
$ 

Total 

$ 

Noel J Griffin 
June 2020 80,800 7,676 - 88,476 

June 2019 60,000  5700 - 65,700 

Richard J Nelson 
June 2020 45,662 4,338 - 50,000 

June 2019 41,747 3,966 - 45,713 

Brett McDonald June 2020 45,662 4,338 - 50,000 

June 2019 35,122 3,337 - 38,459 

Graeme Yukich 
(resigned 31 May  

June 2020 - - - -

2019) June 2019 27,500 2,613 - 30,113 

Total non-
executive 
director 

remuneration 

June 2020 172,124 16,352 - 188,476 

June 2019 164,369 15,616 - 179,985 

Directors are not contracted and have no termination benefits. They are required to stand for re-
election every 3 years.  

(h) Other transactions with KMPs and their related entities

Consulting fees were paid to associates of directors to compensate for additional services
contributed during the year in relation to financial or operational advice as required. 

Commissions were also paid during the 2019 financial year on the convertible notes issued during 
the year.  
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Entity  Related party  Year Consulting 
Fee 

$ 

Commission 

$ 

Payable 
at year end 

$ 

NGR Enterprises Pty 
Ltd 

Noel J Griffin 
June 2020 182,400 - -

June 2019 144,200  9,020  9,020  

Burnel Capital Pty Ltd Richard J Nelson 
June 2020 153,860 - -

June 2019 163,407  10,780  29,838  

Atlas Consulting Pty 
Ltd 

Brett McDonald  
June 2020 5,500 - -

June 2019 9,180 - -

(i) Shareholdings of KMPs

A summary of shareholdings of KMPs is presented below. 

Name  Position  Shares held 
30 June 2019 

Shares 
issued 

in lieu of 
cash 

Shares  
acquired  

during the 
year 

Shares 
acquired 

under 
debt/equity 

swap 

Share 
based 

payments 

Shares held 
30 June 2020 

N Griffin (a)  Non executive director 45,681,685 - - - - 45,681,685 

R Nelson (a) Non executive director 13,448,480 - - - - 13,448,480 

A Hudson  CEO 988,032 - - - - 988,032 

(a) Includes ordinary shares held by associates and shares held in capacity as a Director of an associate.

Interests under option 

No options or rights over unissued shares or interests in the Group were granted during or since the end of the 
year and there were no options or rights outstanding at the date of this report. 

Indemnification and insurance of officers 

During or since the end of the year, the Group has paid or agreed to pay an insurance premium of $11,889 in 
order to indemnify the directors of the Group against all loss up to an aggregate of $5,000,000.  

Indemnification and insurance of auditors 

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the year, for any 
person is or has been an auditor of the Group. 

Auditor's independence declaration 

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation 
to the audit for the financial year is provided with this report. 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Non-audit Services 

During the year the Group’s auditor has performed certain other services in addition to their statutory duties.  
The Board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor and in accordance 
with written advice provided by resolution of the audit committee, is satisfied that the provision of those non-
audit services during the year by the auditor is compatible with, and did not compromise, the auditor 
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. 

Officers of the company who are former partners of Pitcher Partners 

There are no officers of the company who are former partners of Pitcher Partner 

Proceedings on behalf of the Group 

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Group or intervene in any 
proceedings to which the Group is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Group for all 
or any part of those proceedings. 

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of the 
Corporations Act 2001. 

Signed on behalf of the board of directors. 

Mr Noel J Griffin (Chairman) 

Dated  8 October 2020
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The Directors 
Village National Holdings Limited 
Level 1, 647 Stanley Street 
Woolloongabba, QLD 4102 

Auditor’s Independence Declaration 

In relation to the independent audit for the year ended 30 June 2020, to the best of my knowledge and belief 
there have been: 

(i) No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001; and

(ii) No contraventions of APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
Independence Standards).

This declaration is in respect of Village National Holdings Limited and the entities it controlled during the year. 

PITCHER PARTNERS 

Daniel Colwell 
Partner 

Brisbane, Queensland 
8 October 2020 



Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020 

Note

2020

$

2019

$

Revenue and other income

Revenue from contract with customers 5. 57,270,736 15,185,712

Government Grants and Rebates 406,510 -

Interest income 6,639 1,782

Total Income 57,683,885 15,187,494

Expenses

Materials and consumables used (22,853,432) (4,599,800)

Depreciation & amortisation  15, 12,
13 (1,273,880) (935,440)

Employee benefits expense 7. (23,140,091) (4,891,488)

Occupancy expenses (1,227,953) (849,662)

Impairment (loss)/ reversal 12. (450,000) 3,401,121

Other expenses (2,587,982) (1,716,518)

Finance expenses 6. (1,153,935) (498,481)

Total Expenses (52,687,273) (10,090,268)

Profit before income tax 4,996,612 5,097,226

Income tax expense 8. (1,596,024) (67,716)

Profit from continuing operations 3,400,588 5,029,510

Loss from discontinued operations 34. - (161,674)

Profit for the year 3,400,588 4,867,836

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,400,588 4,867,836

Comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent entity 3,400,588 4,867,836

Earnings per share

Earnings per share from continuing operations:

Basic earnings per share (cents) 35 0.79 1.27

Diluted earnings per share (cents) 35 0.79 1.24

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders

Basic earnings per share (cents) 35 0.79 1.23

Diluted earnings per share (cents) 35 0.79 1.20

Earnings per share from discontinued operations:

Basic earnings per share (cents) 35 - (0.04)

Diluted earnings per share (cents 35 - (0.04)

The Group has initially applied AASB 16: Leases using the cumulative effect method and has not restated comparatives.
The comparatives have been prepared using AASB 117: Leases and related interpretations.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As At 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 9 175,895 163,261

Trade receivables 10 8,715,416 10,408,211

Inventories 11 802,337 724,929

Other assets 14 235,468 26,491

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 9,929,116 11,322,892

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables 10 93,630 -

Property, plant and equipment 12 36,777,709 33,007,741

Deferred tax assets 22 1,457,198 2,904,556

Intangible assets 13 6,974,035 7,172,971

Right-of-use assets 15 498,932 -

Other assets 14 25,085 24,424

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 45,826,589 43,109,692

TOTAL ASSETS 55,755,705 54,432,584

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 16 4,900,187 6,632,685

Borrowings 17 7,286,718 4,456,241

Current tax liabilities 309,427 297,480

Lease liabilities 15 107,203 -

Provisions 18 1,111,665 1,020,001

Other financial liabilities 507 1,503

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 13,715,707 12,407,910

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings 17 5,487,143 9,743,711

Deferred tax liabilities 22 978,123 829,462

Lease liabilities 15 374,200 -

Provisions 18 382,254 33,811

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,221,720 10,606,984

TOTAL LIABILITIES 20,937,427 23,014,894

NET ASSETS 34,818,278 31,417,690

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As At 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

EQUITY

Issued capital 19 52,008,323 52,008,323

Accumulated losses (17,190,045) (20,590,633)

Total equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company 34,818,278 31,417,690

TOTAL EQUITY 34,818,278 31,417,690

The Group has initially applied AASB 16: Leases using the cumulative effect method and has not restated comparatives.
The comparatives have been prepared using AASB 117: Leases and related interpretations.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2020

Note

Issued
Capital

$

Accumulated
Losses

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2019 52,008,323 (20,590,633) 31,417,690

Profit attributable to members of the parent
entity - 3,400,588 3,400,588

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

Balance at 30 June 2020 52,008,323 (17,190,045) 34,818,278

2019

Note

Issued
Capital

$

Accumulated
Losses

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2018 49,993,323 (25,458,469) 24,534,854

Profit attributable to members of the parent
entity - 4,867,836 4,867,836

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

Issue of ordinary shares 2,015,000 - 2,015,000

Balance at 30 June 2019 52,008,323 (20,590,633) 31,417,690

The Group has initially applied AASB 16: Leases using the cumulative effect method and has not restated comparatives.
The comparatives have been prepared using AASB 117: Leases and related interpretations. 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers 62,345,661 11,454,542

Government Grant 406,510 -

Payments to suppliers and
employees (54,840,882) (8,748,006)

Interest received 6,639 1,782

Finance costs (1,071,922) (588,144)

Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities 30 6,846,006 2,120,174

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment 12 (5,199,090) (1,646,709)

Payment for business acquired, net
of cash (1,400,000) (5,317,539)

Proceeds from related party loans 38,858 -

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment from
discontinued operations - 1,103,555

Payment for intangible assets 13 (37,200) (3,750)

Loans provided to related parties (93,630) -

Net cash provided by/(used in)
investing activities (6,691,062) (5,864,443)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issue of shares - 15,000

Proceeds from borrowings 1,190,000 5,179,389

Repayment of borrowings (819,452) (2,042,008)

Repayment of lease liabilities (46,151) -

Net cash provided by/(used in)
financing activities 324,397 3,152,381

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents held 479,341 (591,888)

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year (303,446) 288,442

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
financial year 30 175,895 (303,446)

The Group has initially applied AASB 16 using the cumulative effect method and has not restated comparatives. The
comparatives have been prepared using AASB 117 and related interpretations.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

The consolidated financial report covers Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities  ('the Group'). Village
National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities  is a for-profit public Company, incorporated and domiciled in
Australia. The Group is invovled in delivering master-planned accomodation solutions to Australia's mining regions. 

The Group prepare their financial statements based on the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars which is
the parent entity’s functional and presentation currency.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors on the date of signing the Director's Declaration. 

The 2019 financial statements were for the six months ended 30 June 2019. 30 June 2019 was the first reporting
period after the Group changed its financial year from 31 December to 30 June. To provide meaningful comparative
results for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group have reported comparatives for the 12 months ended 30 June

2019. 

1. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with the
Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001.

These financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board.

Reporting basis and conventions

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs modified, where
applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and are
consistent with prior reporting periods unless otherwise stated.

2. Change in Accounting Policy

Leases - Adoption of AASB 16

The Group has adopted AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method from 1 July
2019. Consistent with this method, comparative information for the year ended 30 June 2019 has not been restated
and has been prepared in accordance with AASB 117 Leases and associated Accounting Interpretations.

The impact of adopting AASB 16 is described below:

The Group as a lessee

Under AASB 117 for the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group assessed whether leases were operating or finance
leases based on its assessment of whether the significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to the
Group or remained with the lessor.

Under AASB 16, there is no differentiation between finance and operating leases for the lessee and therefore all
leases which meet the definition of a lease are recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position  (except
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets as a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability). Under
AASB 16 straight line operating lease expense recognition is replaced with an amortisation charge for the right-of-use
assets (included in deprecation and amortisation expense) and interest expense on the recognised liabilities (included
in finance costs). In the earlier periods of the lease, the expenses associated with the lease under AASB 16 will be
higher when compared to lease expenses under AASB 117. However, EBITDA (Earnings before Interest, Tax,
Depreciation and Amortisation) results are expected to improve as the rent expense is now replaced by interest
expense and depreciation and amortisation in profit or loss.
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2. Change in Accounting Policy (continued) 

Leases - Adoption of AASB 16 (continued) 

For classification within the statement of cash flow, the interest paid on the lease liability is disclosed in operating
activities and the principal repayment portion of the lease payments disclosed as a repayment of financial liabilities in
financing activities

The Group has elected to use the exception to lease accounting for short-term leases and leases of low value assets,
and the lease expense relating to these leases are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss  on a
straight line basis

The Group had no right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at 1 July 2019, for leases previously classified as operating
leases. All leases previously disclosed are short term or low value.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis for consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial position and performance of controlled entities from
the date on which control is obtained until the date that control is lost. 

Intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cashflows relating to transactions between entities
in the consolidated entity have been eliminated in full for the purpose of these financial statements.

Appropriate adjustments have been made to a controlled entity’s financial position, performance and cash flows
where the accounting policies used by that entity were different from those adopted by the consolidated entity.
All controlled entities have a June financial year end.

A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 27 to the financial statements. 

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the parent has control.  Control is
established when the parent is exposed to, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. 

(b) Revenue and other income 

Revenue from contracts with customers  

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the
Group identifies the contract with a customer, identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determines
the transaction prices which takes into account estimates of variable consideration and the time value of
money; allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative
stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and recognises revenue when or as
each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services promised. 

The contractual terms and the way in which the Group operates its revenue from contracts with customers is
predominantly derived from one performance obligation that is the provision of accommodation services. The
Group also generates dining revenue, which is considered incidental to their stay in the Group’s properties. 

Accommodation Services

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the services are provided to the customers, which generally
occurs upon the nightly accommodation being rendered to the customer. 
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(b) Revenue and other income (continued) 

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)   
Dining revenue

Dining revenue is recognised at the point in time when the service is rendered to the customer.

Other income  

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Group is entitled to it.

(c) Income Tax 

The tax expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
comprises current income tax expense plus deferred tax expense.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (loss) for the
year and is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year. Current
tax liabilities (assets) are measured at the amounts expected to be paid to (recovered from) the relevant
taxation authority.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences which are determined by comparing the carrying amounts of
tax bases of assets and liabilities to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. 

Deferred tax is not provided for the following:

• The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the

time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

• Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

• Temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities to

the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is

probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
losses can be utilised. Deferred tax assets relating to capital losses are not recognised.

Current and deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the year
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity, in which case the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity respectively.
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) Income Tax (continued)

Tax consolidation

The company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities have formed a tax-consolidated group on 17
November 2011 and are therefore taxed as a single entity from that date. The head entity within the tax-
consolidated Group is Village National Holdings Ltd. The members of the tax-consolidated Group are identified
in Note 27.

Tax expense/income, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of the
members of the tax-consolidated Group are recognised in the separate financial statements of the members of
the tax-consolidated Group using the “separate taxpayer within group” approach by reference to the carrying
amounts in the separate financial statements of each entity and the tax values applying under tax consolidation.
Current tax liabilities and assets and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and relevant tax credits
of the members of the tax-consolidated Group are recognised by the Company (as head entity in the tax-
consolidated Group). Due to the existence of a tax funding arrangement between the entities in the tax-
consolidated Group, amounts are recognised as payable to or receivable by the Company and each member of
the Group in relation to the tax contribution amounts paid or payable between the Parent Entity and the other
members of the tax-consolidated Group in accordance with the arrangement.

(d) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(e) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows  are included on a gross basis and the GST component
of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

(f) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing location and condition. Cost of inventory is determined using the first-in-first-out basis and is net of any
rebates and discounts received.  Net realisable value is estimated using the most reliable evidence available at
the reporting date and inventory is written down through an obsolescence provision if necessary.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(g) Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

     Land and buildings  

Land and buildings are measured on the cost basis and therefore carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment. In the event the carrying amount of land and buildings is greater than the
estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to the estimated recoverable
amount and impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is
made when impairment indicators are present. 

Plant and equipment   

Plant and equipment are measured on a cost basis.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Group. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation  

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets
useful life to the Group, commencing when the asset is ready for use. 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Fixed asset class Useful lives

Buildings and improvements 5 - 45 years

Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 5 - 10 years

Motor Vehicles 5 years

Office Equipment 1 - 5 years

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

(h) Financial instruments 

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Group becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) where transaction costs are expensed as
incurred).
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(h) Financial instruments (continued) 

Financial assets  

Impairment of financial assets 

Impairment of financial assets is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis for the following assets:

• financial assets measured at amortised cost

• debt investments measured at FVOCI

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significant since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort.  This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking
information.

The Group uses the presumption that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant
increase in credit risk.

The Group uses the presumption that a financial asset is in default when:

• the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse to the Group

to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

• the financial assets is more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows expected to be received.  This is applied using a probability
weighted approach.

Receivables and loans

Receivables and loans are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are carried at amortised cost less any allowance for expected losses. Gains
and Losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. 

Impairment of receivables and loans have been determined using the simplified approach in AASB 9 which
uses an estimation of lifetime expected credit losses. The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
as to whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.  The Group has determined the
probability of non-payment of the receivable and loans and multiplied this by the amount of the expected loss
arising from default. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
days overdue.
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(h) Financial instruments (continued) 

Financial assets (continued)  

The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being recognised in
finance expense.  Once the receivable is determined to be uncollectable then the gross carrying amount is
written off against the associated allowance.

Where the Group renegotiates the terms of trade receivables due from certain customers, the new expected
cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value
is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand and at demand deposits with original maturities of three
months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value,
and are used by the Group in the management of short term commitments.

Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows
and are presented within current liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial liabilities  

The Group measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Group comprise trade payables, bank and other loans and lease liabilities.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets 

At the end of each reporting period the Group determines whether there is an evidence of any impairment
indicator for non-financial assets.

Where an indicator exists and regardless for goodwill, indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

Where assets do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit (CGU) is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.  Where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so
that the level at which impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(j) Intangibles 

Goodwill  

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries (acquired from business combination) is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment loss.

Customer Relationships  

Customer relationships arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries (acquired from business combinations) have a
finite life, are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Other  

Patents, trademarks and website development costs are are recognised at cost of acquisition.Those have a
finite life and are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill
and customer relationships, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation  

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.

Amortisation rates

Customer relationships 5-15 years

Other 5-10 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

(k) Leases 

For comparative year

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor,
are charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease term.

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but
not the legal ownership that are transferred to entities in the Group, are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed
residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest
expense for the year.
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Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(k) Leases (continued) 

For current year

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a lease exists. A key test is whether does the contract
convey the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

This involves an assessment of whether:

• The contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be explicitly or implicitly identified within

the agreement.  If the supplier has a substantive substitution right then there is no identified asset.

• The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset

throughout the period of use.

• The Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. This includes decision making rights in relation to

changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

Lessee accounting

The non-lease components included in the lease agreement have been separated and are recognised as an
expense as incurred.

Right-of-use asset  

At the lease commencement, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the
lease term.  The lease term includes extension periods where the Group believes it is reasonably certain that
the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises of the
lease liability, initial direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration less any
lease incentives received and, except where included in the cost of inventory, an estimate of costs expected to
be incurred for dismantling and removing the underlying asset and restoring the site or asset.

The right-of-use asset is amortised over the lease term on a straight line basis. Right-of-use assets are subject
to impairment in accordance with the impairment of assets accounting policy or adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities where a lease modification occurs.

Lease liability  

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement of the lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be
readily determined then the Group's incremental borrowing rate is used. Lease payments comprise fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate,
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the
exercise of the option is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. The lease liability is remeasured when there is a lease modification, change in estimate of the
lease term, index upon which the lease payments are based or a change in the Group's assessment of lease
term or any termination penalties.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k) Leases (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

Where the lease liability is remeasured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the remeasurement or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Exceptions to lease accounting

The Group has elected to apply the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a
term of less than or equal to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but
not the legal ownership that are transferred to entities in the Group, are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed
residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest
expense for the year.

(l) Employee benefits

Provision is made for the Group's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to
the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within one year have
been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have been
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In
determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the
employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Cashflows are discounted using market yields on high quality
corporate bond rates incorporating bonds rated AAA or AA by credit agencies, with terms to maturity that match
the expected timing of cashflows. Changes in the measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations are presented as current liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position if the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. All other long-
term employee benefit obligations are presented as non-current liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Defined contribution superannuation schemes

The Group makes superannuation contributions (currently 9.50% of the employee’s average ordinary salary) to
the employee's defined contribution superannuation plan of choice in respect of employee services rendered
during the period. These superannuation contributions are recognised as an expense in the same period when
the related employee services are received. The Group's obligation with respect to employee's defined
contributions entitlements is limited to its obligation for any unpaid superannuation guarantee contributions at
the end of the reporting period.  All obligations for unpaid superannuation guarantee contributions are
measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled and are presented
as current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(m) Provisions 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost.  

(n) Segment reporting 

Segment results that are reported to the Board include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets (primarily the
Group’s headquarters), head office expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.

(o) Going concern 

At 30 June 2020, the Group was in a net current liability position of $3,786,591 (2019: $1,085,018 liability).  

The net current liability exists at 30 June 2019 mainly due to the deferred consideration payable to the original
shareholders of OICS within the next 12 months of $1,418,932 (Principal of $1,400,000 and accrued interest of
$18,932). 

The net current liability for 30 June 2020 is the result of the first tranche of convertible notes reaching maturity
and the increase in repayment terms of the bank debt. 

The Group’s ongoing operations, and its ability to meet its repayment obligations with existing creditors and
lenders, is dependent on a number of factors including the ongoing support of its bank, its ability to raise
additional equity for expansion and achieving budgeted operating results. The Bank has provided additional
funding support for the Group through a $5,000,000 invoice funding facility. $1,326,530 of this facility was
utilised at 30 June 2020.   

Management believes the Group is well placed to achieve their strategy, and if successful, the Group's
operating results will be positively impacted. 

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group is a going concern and will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payable. 

The parent entity’s ongoing operations are also dependent on the factors noted above, and its controlled
entities providing sufficient funds to enable the parent entity to meet its debts as and when they fall due. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the parent entity
and Group will realise their assets and extinguish their liabilities in the normal course of business. 

(p) Comparatives 

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified and repositioned for consistent with current
period disclosures.

(q) Rounding of amounts  

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest dollar unless
otherwise stated.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(r) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

The Group has adopted all standards which became effective for the first time at 30 June 2020, the adoption of
these standards has not caused any material adjustments to the reported financial position, performance or
cash flow of the Group. Refer to Note 2. for details of the changes due to standards adopted.

(s) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

At the date of the financial statements no new accounting standards issued with a future effective date, had a
material impact on the Group.

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors make estimates,  judgements during the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
regarding assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements. As additional information is known, then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made are described within the notes to the financial statements:

• Impairment of goodwill - Note 12

• Property, plant and equipment - Note 12

• Leases - Note 15

• Recoverability of deferred tax asset and tax losses - Note 22

5. Revenue from Contracts with Customers

2020

$

2019

$

Continued operations

- Accommodation and dining services -
point in time 57,270,736 15,185,712

- Discontinued operations

- Accommodation and dining services -
point in time - 218,408

57,270,736 15,404,120

6. Finance Expenses

Interest expense

Interest expense on lease
liabilities 12,677 -

Interest and Other finance
expenses 1,141,258 498,481

Total finance expenses 1,153,935 498,481
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7. Employee Benefits Expense

Employee benefits include the following significant items:

Wages and salaries 21,385,116 4,517,641

Superannuation contributions 1,754,975 373,847

23,140,091 4,891,488

8. Income Tax Expense

(a) The major components of tax expense (income) comprise:

Income tax expense/(benefit) is
attributable to

Continuing operations 1,596,024 67,716

Discontinued operations - 260,160

1,596,024 327,876

Deferred tax expense

Deferred tax 1,590,765 336,982

Impact of change in tax rates (189,066) 25,439

Under/(over) provision in respect
of prior years 194,325 (34,545)

1,596,024 327,876

30

2020

$

2019

$
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8. Income Tax Expense (continued) 
(b) Reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable:

2020

$

Profit before income tax expense 4,996,612 5,195,712

Prima facie tax payable on profit
before income tax is reconciled to
the income tax expense as
follows:

Prima facie income tax payable on
profit before income tax at 30%
(2019: 27.5%) %30.00 %27.50

1,498,984 1,428,821

Add/(less):

Tax effect of:

- non-assessable income (47,878) -

- reversal of impairment loss - (935,308)

- non-deductible expenses 139,659 50,372

- impact of change in tax rate (189,066) 25,439

- under/(over) provision in prior
years 194,325 (34,545)

- Tax effect of deferred tax asset
first recognised in current period - (206,903)

Income tax expense 1,596,024 327,876

9. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash on hand 700 1,900

Cash at bank 175,195 161,361

175,895 163,261

10. Trade and Other Receivables 

CURRENT

Trade receivables 8,715,416 10,369,353

Related party receivables - 38,858

8,715,416 10,408,211

NON-CURRENT

Related party receivables 29. 93,630 -

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term
nature of the balances.

31

2019
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10. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable in the financial
statements.

Impairment of receivables  

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing with 31 - 75 days terms. The impairment losses have been included within
other expenses within profit or loss. Trade receivables that are not impaired are expected to be received within trading
terms.

As at 30 June 2020 no trade receivables of the Group were assessed as doubtful (2019: nil).

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed by AASB 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.  To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.  

30 June 2020 Current 31-60 days 61-90 days > 90days Total

Expected loss rate (%) - - - -

Gross carrying amount ($) 4,388,493 3,848,830 429,332 48,761 8,715,416

30 June 2019

Expected loss rate (%) - - - -

Gross carrying amount ($) 5,531,086 4,437,625 252,513 186,987 10,408,211

11. Inventories 

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Stock on hand 802,337 724,929

Write downs of inventories to net realisable value during the year were $ nil (2019: $ nil).
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12. Property, plant and equipment 

2020

$

2019

$

LAND AND BUILDINGS

At cost 46,963,883 41,981,397

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (11,760,316) (10,774,948)

Total land and buildings 35,203,567 31,206,449

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office equipment at cost 309,949 361,337

Accumulated depreciation (187,009) (276,960)

Total plant and equipment 122,940 84,377

Furniture, fixtures and fittings

At cost 2,442,275 2,292,591

Accumulated depreciation (1,772,851) (1,500,472)

Total furniture, fixtures and fittings 669,424 792,119

Motor vehicles

At cost 1,211,321 1,214,196

Accumulated depreciation (429,543) (289,400)

Total motor vehicles 781,778 924,796

Total plant and equipment 1,574,142 1,801,292

Total property, plant and
equipment 36,777,709 33,007,741

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end
of the current financial year:

Land and
Buildings

$

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Fittings

$

Motor
Vehicles

$

Office
Equipment

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 June 2020

Balance at beginning of the year 31,206,449 792,119 924,796 84,377 33,007,741

Additions 4,983,686 143,311 - 72,093 5,199,090

Depreciation expense (536,568) (266,006) (143,018) (33,530) (979,122)

Impairment (loss)/reversal on land and
buildings (450,000) - - - (450,000)

Balance at the end of the year 35,203,567 669,424 781,778 122,940 36,777,709
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Land and
Buildings

$

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Fittings

$

Motor
Vehicles

$

Office
Equipment

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 June 2019

Balance at beginning of the year 28,394,104 879,019 39,528 21,207 29,333,858

Additions 1,266,735 164,584 187,378 28,012 1,646,709

Additions through acquisition of entity 27,222 - 735,077 50,726 813,025

Depreciation expense (666,011) (221,381) (24,055) (11,963) (923,410)

Disposals (1,216,722) (30,103) (13,132) (3,605) (1,263,562)

Impairment (loss)/reversal on land and
buildings 3,401,121 - - - 3,401,121

Balance at the end of the year 31,206,449 792,119 924,796 84,377 33,007,741

(a) Impairment  

Impairment charges/reversals in relation to property plant and equipment are recorded in impairment (loss)/reversal
line within the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.  Each individual property
operated by the Group is considered to be a separate cash generating unit (CGU). 

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined using the value in use discounted cash flow valuation
model by applying a capitalisation of future maintainable earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) approach for each CGU.

The total provision for impairment on land and building assets held by the Group at 30 June 2020 is $7,760,539 (2019:
$7,310,539). A further impairment of $450,000 was recorded for the Pritchard Road Resort (Pritchard Road). During
the 30 June 2019 financial year, impairment reversals were recognised in Coal Country Resort (Coal Country) and
Pritchard Road Resort of $2,651,121 and $750,000 respectively. 

The discounted cash flow valuation models applied a discount rate of 17.5% (2019: 12% to 14%). The higher discount
rate compared to the 2019 financial year is reflective of the current environment in those regions and increased levels
of uncertainty in cash flow estimates for the properties that are most dependent on the mining and resources sector
and cyclical cash flows.
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

(a) Impairment (continued)  

The following table sets out the key assumptions used in the value in use models for the seperately identified CGU's:

OICS
Coal

Country
Pritchard

Road

Average Annual Growth rate (%)     13%        10%       9%

Terminal growth rate (%)      3%         3%       3%

Pre-tax discount rate (%)    17.5%       17.5%     17.5%

Management has determined the value assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows:

(1) Annual growth rate - Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast period is based on cashflow 
budgets, past performance and management's expectations of future performance.

(2) Terminal growth rate - Terminal growth rate was based on management's expectations of long-term growth.

(3) Discount rate - A pre-tax estimate based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital. 

Significant estimate: impact of reasonably possible changes in key assumptions:

(1) Average annual growth rates - reduction by 5% - No impairment in either OIC's or Coal Country, but for the
Pritchard Road CGU, the Group would have had to recognise an impairment of $1,800,000.

(2) Terminal growth rate - reduction by 1% - No impairment in either OIC's or Coal Country, but for the Pritchard Road
CGU, the Group would have had to recognised an impairment of $700,000.

(3) Discount rate - increase by 1% - No impairment in either OIC's or Coal Country, but for the Pritchard Road CGU,
the Group would have had to recognised an impairment of $600,000.

(b) Property, plant and equipment pledged as security   

All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group is pledged as security under the loan facility agreement dated
28 May 2019 with National Australia Bank with a maturity date of 30 September 2021. Refer to Note 17.
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13. Intangible Assets 

2020

$

2019

$

Trademarks

At cost 1,800 1,800

Website development

At cost 46,330 9,558

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (5,853) (3,412)

40,477 6,146

Customer relationships acquired
from business combination

At cost 3,014,183 3,014,183

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (252,706) (19,439)

2,761,477 2,994,744

Goodwill acquired from business
combination

Cost 4,170,281 4,170,281

Total Intangibles 6,974,035 7,172,971

(a) Movements in carrying amounts of intangible assets   

Trademarks

$

Website
development

$

Goodwill

$

Customer
relationships

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 June
2020

Balance at the
beginning of the year 1,800 6,146 4,170,281 2,994,744 7,172,971

Additions - 37,200 - - 37,200

Amortisation - (2,869) - (233,267) (236,136)

Closing value at 30
June 2020 1,800 40,477 4,170,281 2,761,477 6,974,035

Impairment assessment for cash-generating units containing goodwill

36

The Group completes an impairment assessment on cash-generating units to which goodwill is allocated on an 
annualbasis or where there are indicators that CGU assets may be impaired. This assessment involves comparison 
of the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to its carrying value. There are a number of assumptions made in the
determination of value-in-use, which are outlined in detail at Note 12. 
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13. Intangible Assets (continued) 

(a) Movements in carrying amounts of intangible assets (continued)   

Trademarks

$

Website
development

$

Goodwill

$

Customer
relationships

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 June
2019

Balance at the
beginning of the year 1,800 2,860 - - 4,660

Additions - 3,750 - - 3,750

Additions through
business
combinations - - 4,170,281 3,014,183 7,184,464

Amortisation - (464) - (19,439) (19,903)

Closing value at 30
June 2019 1,800 6,146 4,170,281 2,994,744 7,172,971

14. Other assets 

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Prepayments 81,396 26,246

Contract asset 114,350 -

Other current asset 39,722 245

235,468 26,491

NON-CURRENT

Other non-current asset 25,085 24,424

25,085 24,424

15. Leases 

Right-of-use assets  

Office accommodation

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 June 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year - -

Additions 557,554 557,554

Amortisation (58,622) (58,622)

Balance at end of year 498,932 498,932
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15. Leases (continued) 

The weighted average lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 5%. 

Lease liabilities  

2020

$

2019

$

Year ended 30 June 2020

Current 107,203 -

Non-current 374,200 -

Total 481,403 -

Extension options  

A building lease contains an extension option which allow the Group to extend the lease term by up to two years.

The Group includes options in the leases to provide flexibility and certainty to the Group operations and reduce costs
of moving premises and the extension options are at the Group's discretion.

At commencement date and each subsequent reporting date, the Group assesses whether it is reasonably certain that
the extension options will be exercised. 

Future cash outflows the Group is potentially exposed to should the option be exercised is $77,963. The Group
presently do not plan to exercise the option.

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income  relating to
leases where the Group is a lessee are shown below:

Lease expense 1,920,414 1,039,406

Interest expense on lease
liabilities 12,677 -

Amortisation of right-of-use-asset 58,622 -

1,991,713 1,039,406

Total cash outflows for leases

Interest on lease liability (12,677) -

Repayment of lease liability (46,151) -

(58,828) -
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16. Trade and Other Payables

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Trade payables 3,644,048 4,412,005

Other payables 1,256,139 2,220,680

4,900,187 6,632,685

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days.  The carrying
value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term nature
of the balances.

17. Borrowings

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Secured liabilities:

Equipment loans 739,291 570,603

Bank loans 2,500,000 2,000,000

Bank Invoice Finance Facility 1,357,427 -

Covertible Notes 2,690,000 -

Unsecured liabilities:

Bank overdraft - 466,707

Deferred consideration - 1,418,931

Total current borrowings 7,286,718 4,456,241

NON-CURRENT

Secured liabilities:

Convertible notes - 1,500,000

Bank loans 4,795,000 7,295,000

Equipment loans 705,243 1,050,810

Prepaid borrowing costs (13,100) (102,099)

Total non-current borrowings 5,487,143 9,743,711

Total borrowings 12,773,861 14,199,952

Summary of borrowings 

Bank loans 

The bank loan facilities dated 28 May 2019 was subject to a Variation of Terms extending facilities until 30 September
2021. 

The bank facilities are secured by a registered first mortgage over each property owned by the Group as well as a first
priority general security agreement over the Group’s assets. Additionally, each company within the Group has provided
cross-guarantees to the other companies within the Group, except for Village National Emerald Operations Pty Ltd,
Village Emerald Properties Pty Ltd and Seraph Eldercare Pty Ltd. These companies will be deregistered (Note 27). 
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17. Borrowings (continued) 

Summary of borrowings (continued)  

The bank loan facility is an interest only loan and the interest rate is variable (BBSY). Interest is paid 90 days in
arrears. A facility fee of 2.75% of the facility limit is charged per annum, which is also paid every 90 days in arrears. In
addition, the Group is required to make quarterly repayments of $625,000 per quarter.

 The primary covenants imposed under the NAB finance agreement require management to provide quarterly
management accounts to the bank in addition to meeting quarterly financial covenants in respect of Debt Service
Coverage Ratio, Loan to Value ratio and Senior Operating Leverage Ratio.  

The Group have complied with the bank covenants.  

Equipment loans are effectively secured by the respective asset(s) and by guarantees provided by related entities
within the Group. 

Convertible Notes 

The key terms and conditions of the notes include the following: 

• The noteholder has the right to convert their notes to shares, subject to conditions; 

• A noteholder may require the conversion of its notes by giving a conversion notice to the Company but only in the

event the Company is in default under the terms of the convertible note deed;

• 12% interest is paid in arrears at the end of each financial quarter.  Unpaid accrued interest will attract further

interest if not paid by the due date; 

• The convertible notes can be repaid prior to their repayment date, at the election of the Company; 

• Where early repayment occurs, minimum interest is payable on the note, calculated as interest payable on the

principal for a minimum of 12 months;

• The notes may be converted to a variable number of ordinary shares calculated as the balance of any outstanding

unpaid principal, unpaid accrued interest and unpaid other payments, divided by 80% of the market value of the

ordinary shares in the Company at the conversion date; and

• The convertible notes are secured by a general security deed granted by Village National Holdings Limited and

are subordinate to the bank debt facility.

Deferred consideration 

Payable in four quarterly payments of $386,050 (principal and interest) commencing August 2019 for the acquisition of
OICS. Interest accrued daily and compounded monthly at the rate of 10%.

Defaults and breaches

During the current year and prior period, there were no defaults or breach of any reporting covenant or undertaking.
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17. Borrowings (continued) 

Bank guarantees  

2019

The Group has a bank guarantee facility of $200,000 which was fully drawn down for a 12 month lease of Eastwood
camp. In addition, a further bank guarantee for $105,000 was entered into during the period and utilised for Isaac
Regional Council for sewer upgrades.

2020

The $105,000 bank guarantee has expired. The Group continues to have an obligation for the capital works up to
$105,000. The bank guarantee facility of $200,00 is fully drawn. 

(a) Invoice finance facility  

The facility variation dated 4 October 2019 with the bank included an invoice finance facility. The facility provides for
funding of up to 70% of debtors capped at $5 million. This facility was drawn to $1,326,530 at 30 June 2020. The
individual debtors assigned to the facility act as security. 

18. Provisions 

2020

$

2019

$

Current liabilities

Employee benefits 1,111,665 1,020,001

1,111,665 1,020,001

Non-current liabilities

Employee Provisions 352,254 33,811

Makegood provision 30,000 -

382,254 33,811

19. Issued Capital 

Share capital - ordinary shares 52,008,323 52,008,323

Ordinary shares  

The parent entity does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued shares.

2020

No.

2019

No.

At the beginning of the reporting
period 432,875,980 384,792,646

Shares issued during the year

18 January 2019 - 14,000,000

28 May 2019 - 33,333,334

4 July 2018 - 750,000

At the end of the reporting period 432,875,980 432,875,980
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19. Issued Capital (continued)

Ordinary shares (continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company.
On a show of hands at meetings of the Company, each holder of ordinary shares has one vote in person or by proxy,
and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

Capital Management

The key objectives of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern
and maintain optimal benefits to stakeholders. This is achieved through the monitoring of historical and forecast
performance and cash flows. The Company defines capital as its equity and net debt.

There has been no change to capital risk management policies during the year.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes funding decisions based on the prevailing economic
environment and has a number of tools available to manage capital risk. These include maintaining a diversified debt
portfolio, the ability to adjust the size and timing of dividends paid to shareholders and the issue of new shares.

20. Capital and Leasing Commitments

Operating Leases

2020

$

2019

$

Minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases:

- not later than one year - 45,059

- between one year and five years - 19,023

- 64,082

Operating leases are in place for plant and equipment and normally have a term between 1 and 5 years. Lease
payments are increased on an annual basis to reflect market rentals. Refer to Note 2 and 15 for disclosures in respect
to the transition to the new accounting standard AASB16 Leases. 

21. Financial Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use of financial instruments.

The Group‘s overall risk management plan seeks to minimise potential adverse effects due to the unpredictability of
financial markets. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are described below:

Specific risks

• Liquidity risk

• Credit risk

• Interest rate risk
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21. Financial Risk Management (continued) 
Financial instruments used

The principal categories of financial instrument used by the Group are:

• Trade receivables

• Cash at bank

• Bank overdraft / Invoice finance

• Trade and other payables

• Bank loans

• Convertible notes

         Objectives, policies and processes   

The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment of the Group’s financial risk management
framework. This includes the development of policies to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed from time to time to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The
summaries below present information about the Group’s exposure to each of these risks, their objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk, the management of capital and financial instruments. 

Liquidity risk  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.  The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Group’s reputation. 

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity management rests with the Board of Directors. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate funding and monitoring of future rolling cash flow forecasts of its operations, which reflect
management’s expectations of expected settlement of financial assets and liabilities. 

Details of current facilities as well as defaults and breaches are in Note 17. 
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21. Financial Risk Management (continued) 

Maturity analysis  

The table below represents the undiscounted contractual settlement terms for financial instruments and management's
expectation for settlement of undiscounted maturities. The remaining contractual maturities disclosed in the below
table include interest and principal cash flows. Therefore these totals may differ from their carrying amount in the
consolidated statement of financial position.  

Interest Rate

<6 Months

$

6-12 Months

$

1-5 Years

$

Total

$

Period ended 30 June
2019

Trade and other payables 6,632,685 - - 6,632,685

Bank and other loans 2,666,803 2,173,425 8,524,681 13,364,909

Convertible Notes - - 1,796,384 1,796,384

Deferred consideration - 1,546,600 - 1,546,600

9,299,488 3,720,025 10,321,065 23,340,578

Year ended 30 June
2020

Trade and other payables 4,900,187 - - 4,900,187

Bank and other loans 1,645,328 1,645,328 6,825,653 10,116,309

Convertible notes 1,796,384 1,436,607 - 3,232,991

Lease liabilities 64,613 64,613 405,566 534,792

8,406,512 3,146,548 7,231,219 18,784,279

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as funds are borrowed at floating and fixed rates. At balance date, the Group
had the following financial assets and liabilities exposed to variable interest rate risk.

Refer to above maturity analysis table for interest rates. 

2020

$

2019

$

Cash at bank 175,195 163,261

Bank and other loans (8,652,427) (9,761,707)

(8,477,232) (9,598,446)

Sensitivity analysis

If interest rates were to increase/decrease by 50 basis points from rates used to determine fair values as at the
reporting date, assuming all other variables that might impact on fair value remain constant, then the impact on profit
for the year and equity is as follows:
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21. Financial Risk Management (continued)

2020 2019

+/-0.50% +/-0.50%

$ $

Impact on profit before income tax 44,954 47,992

Impact on equity 31,468 34,794

Credit risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, outstanding
receivables and committed transactions.

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties
are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Cash deposits

Credit risk for cash deposits is managed by holding all cash deposits with major Australian banks.

Trade receivables and contract assets  

Credit risk for trade receivables is managed by transacting with a large number of customers, undertaking credit
checks for all new customers and setting credit limits and completing credit checks for all new customers
commensurate with their assessed credit risk. Outstanding receivables are regularly monitored for payment in
accordance with credit terms.

The aging analysis of trade and other receivables is provided in Note 10. As the Group undertakes transactions with a
large number of customers and regularly monitors payment in accordance with credit terms, the financial assets that
are neither past due nor impaired, are expected to be received in accordance with the credit terms.

22. Tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax

Deferred tax asset balance
comprises:

2020

$

2019

$

Employee benefits 439,175 289,798

Income tax losses 740,003 2,374,784

Accrued expenses 89,211 208,224

Lease liability and makegood 153,421 -

Other 35,388 31,750

1,457,198 2,904,556
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22. Tax assets and liabilities (continued) 

Deferred tax (continued)  

Deferred tax liabilities balance
comprises:

2020

$

2019

$

Intangibles 828,443 823,555

Right of use asset 149,680 -

Prepayments - 5,907

978,123 829,462

Deferred income tax (revenue)/expense included in income tax expense comprises:   

2020

$

2019

$

Decrease / (increase) in deferred
tax assets 1,514,622 343,819

(Decrease) / increase in deferred
tax liabilities 76,143 (6,837)

Total 1,590,765 336,982

Deferred tax assets not brought to account   

Capital losses 5,689,169 5,689,169

5,689,169 5,689,169

Recovery of deferred tax assets

23. Dividends 

No dividends were paid during the year ended 30 June 2020 (2019: nil).
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses and deductible temporary differences to the extent that management
considers that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available to utilise temporary differences and recognised
tax losses.  Where the Group has made a taxable loss in the current or preceding year, a deferred tax asset for carry
forward tax losses is only recognised to the extent that there is convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will
be available against which the recognised unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant assumptions and judgement
was required to determine whether historical tax losses meet the continuity of ownership or same business test under
Australian taxation law as well as the amount of deferred tax asset that are probable of being utilised against future
taxable profits.



Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020
24. Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Key management personnel remuneration included within employee expenses for the year is shown below:

2020

$

2019

$

Short-term employee benefits 733,848 594,527

Post-employment benefits 45,716 53,526

779,564 648,053

Key management personnel are those having authority for planning directly and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including any director of the Group.

25. Auditors' Remuneration

2020

$

2019

$

Remuneration of the auditor
Pitcher Partners, for:

- audit services 130,000 120,000

- non-audit services 64,587 12,455

194,587 132,455

Non Pitcher Partners audit firms:

- audit services - 45,000

26. Deed of Cross-Guarantee

On 26 June 2019, the Group entities entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee. It is a condition of the ASIC Legislative
Instrument 2017/785 dated 29 September 2017, that the Company and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed of
Cross Guarantee. The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt
in the event of winding up any of the subsidiaries under certain provisions of the Corporations Act 2001.

If a winding up occurs under other provisions of the Act, the Company will only be liable in the event that after six
months any creditor has not been paid in full. The subsidiaries have also given similar guarantees in the event that the
Company is wound up.

The subsidiaries subject to the deed are all subsidiaries listed in Note 27.

These companies represent a closed group for the purposes of the class order.
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27. Interests in Subsidiaries 

Composition of the Group  

Percentage
Owned (%)*

2020

Percentage
Owned (%)*

2019

Subsidiaries:

Village National Pty Ltd 100 100

Village National Operations Pty Ltd 100 100

Village National Facilities Management Pty Ltd (i) 100 100

Village National Properties Pty Ltd 100 100

Village National Pritchard Properties Pty Ltd 100 100

Village National Pritchard Operations Pty Ltd 100 100

Village National Emerald Operations Pty Ltd (i) 100 100

Village National Coal Country Operations Pty Ltd 100 100

Village National Emerald Properties Pty Ltd (i) 100 100

Village National Coal Country Properties Pty Ltd 100 100

OICS Holdings Pty Ltd 100 100

OICS Catering Pty Ltd 100 100

OICS Camp Rental Pty Ltd 100 100

Seraph Eldercare Pty Ltd (i) 100 100

Village National Isaac Properties Pty Ltd (i) 100 100

*The percentage of ownership interest held is equivalent to the percentage voting rights for all subsidiaries.

(i) As at 30 June 2020, these entities were subject to voluntary deregistration and awaiting ASIC approval.

28. Contingencies 

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company did not have any contingencies at 30 June 2020 (30 June 2019: None).
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29. Related Parties 

The Group's main related parties are as follows:   

The ultimate parent entity, which exercises control over the Group, is Village National Holdings Ltd which is
incorporated in Australia and owns 100% of all Village National entities.

Key management personnel - refer to Note 24.

Other related parties include close family members of key management personnel and entities that are controlled or
significantly influenced by those key management personnel or their close family members.

Transactions with key management personnel and their related parties   

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than those
available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

1) Rights Granted to Mr David John Franklyn (former MD) - 30 June 2019 

On 1 July 2016, Mr David Franklyn’s remuneration was amended to include performance rights redeemable for shares
in the event of certain EBITDA hurdles being satisfied. At the time of issue, the rights had no value. During the 2019
year, Mr David Franklyn achieved the conditions and converted his performance rights to 14,000,000 ordinary shares
issued in January 2019.

2) Consulting fees 

Consulting fees were paid to directors during the period to compensate for additional services contributed in relation to
financial or operational advice as required. 

$182,400 (2019: $144,200) was paid to NGR Enterprises Pty Ltd, an associated entity to Noel J Griffin. Burnel Capital
Pty Ltd, an associated entity to Richard J Nelson, was paid $153,860 (2019: $163,407). Atlas Consulting Pty Ltd, an
associated entity to Brett McDonald, was paid $5,500 (2019: $9,180).

 3) Commissions paid

During the 30 June 2019 financial year, commissions were paid at 2% of the value of convertible notes raised during
the period. NGR Enterprises Pty Ltd, an associated entity of Noel J Griffin, was paid $9,020 and Burnel Capital, an
entity related to Richard J Nelson, was paid $10,780. 
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29. Related Parties (continued)

Loans to/from related parties

Unsecured loans are made to the ultimate parent entity, subsidiaries, key management personnel and other related
parties on an arm's length basis. Loans are unsecured and repayable in cash.

2020

$

2019

$

Balance owed to entities related to
Noel Griffin - 9,020

Balance owed to entities related to
Rick Nelson - 29,838

Balance owed from entities related to
Andrew Hudson 93,630 -

93,630 38,858

No interest is paid on the above loans payable to entities related to key management personel. 

The loan to Andrew Hudson is repayable by 15 August 2021 and accrues interest at 5.2%.

Other than the balances noted above, no balances were payable to or receivable from related parties. 

(a) Equity transactions with key management personnel

The following table details equity transactions of Key Management Personnel:

Shares
held

30 June
2019

Shares
issued in

lieu of
cash

Shares
acquired 
during the

year

Shares
acquired 

under debt
/equity
swap

Share
based

payments

Shares held
30 June

2020

Name

Directors

N Griffin (i) 45,681,685 - - - - 45,681,685

R Nelson (i) 13,448,480 - - - - 13,448,480

Chief Executive Officer

A Hudson (i) 988,032 - - - - 988,032

60,118,197 - - - - 60,118,197
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29. Related Parties (continued) 

(a) Equity transactions with key management personnel (continued)  

The following table details equity transactions of Key Management Personnel:

Shares
held 30

June 2018

Shares
issued in

lieu of
cash

Shares
acquired

during the
year

Shares
acquired

under
debt/equity

swap

Share
based

payments

Shares
held 30

June 2019

Name

Directors

N Griffin (i) 45,681,685 - - - - 45,681,685

R Nelson (i) 13,448,480 - - - - 13,448,480

Chief Executive Officer

A Hudson (i) - 988,032 - - - 988,032

59,130,165 988,032 - - - 60,118,197

(i) Includes ordinary shares held by associates and shares held in capacity as a Director of an associate.
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30. Cash Flow Information 

Reconciliation of result for the year to cashflows from operating activities:   

2020

$

2019

$

Cash and cash equivalents 175,895 163,261

Bank overdrafts - (466,707)

175,895 (303,446)

Profit for the year 3,400,588 4,867,836

Cash flows excluded from profit
attributable to operating activities

Non-cash flows in profit:

 - depreciation and amortisation 1,273,880 943,313

 - gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment - (117,582)

 - impairment loss expense/(reversal) 450,000 (3,401,121)

Changes in assets and liabilities:

 - (increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables 1,653,937 (1,101,400)

 - (increase)/decrease in other assets (209,637) (10,308)

 - (increase)/decrease in prepaid
borrowing costs 88,999 (89,663)

 - (increase)/decrease in inventories (77,408) (23,042)

 - (increase)/decrease in deferred tax
asset 1,447,358 -

 - increase/(decrease) in trade and
other payables (1,732,528) 661,799

 - increase/(decrease) in income taxes
payable 11,946 -

 - increase/(decrease) in deferred tax
liability 148,661 336,985

 - (increase)/deferred consideration (18,931) -

 - increase/(decrease) in provisions 410,107 57,854

 - increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (966) (4,497)

Cashflow from operations 6,846,006 2,120,174

Non cash financing and investing activities 

During the 30 June 2019 financial year, 2,000,000 shares were issued as part consideration for the acquisition of the
OICS Group. 
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30. Cash Flow Information (continued)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2019

$

Cash flows

$

Other non-
cash

movement

$

2020

$

Equipment Finance 1,621,413 (176,879) - 1,444,534

Convertible Notes 1,500,000 1,190,000 - 2,690,000

Bank Loans 9,295,000 (642,573) - 8,652,427

Lease Liability - (46,151) 527,554 481,403

Deferred Consideration 1,418,931 (1,418,931) - -

Total liabilities from
financing activities 13,835,344 (1,094,534) 527,554 13,268,364

Credit standby arrangements with Banks 

2020

$

2019

$

Bank credit facilities

Credit facility 5,000,000 -

Amount utilised (1,357,427) -

Amount unused 3,642,573 -

31. Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

A selective share buy back was approved by shareholders at a extraordinary general meeting held on 29 June 2020.
Offer documents were issued to eligible shareholders on 5 August 2020. The share buy back is for those shareholders
with shares with a total value of less than $1,000; at a price of six (6) cents per share.

Other than the matter noted above, no matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which
significantly affected or could significantly affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the
state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.

32. Parent entity

The following information has been extracted from the books and records of the parent, Village National Holdings
Limited and Controlled Entities  and has been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards. The financial
information for the parent entity, Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities  has been prepared on the
same basis as the consolidated financial statements except as disclosed below.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities are accounted for at cost in the consolidated financial
statements of the parent entity. Dividends received from associates are recognised in the parent entity profit or loss,
rather than being deducted from the carrying amount of these investments.
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Parent entity (continued) 

2020

$

2019

$

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Current assets 198,329 99,203

Non current assets 60,846,318 61,529,607

Total Assets 61,044,647 61,628,810

Liabilities

Current liabilities 5,618,511 3,665,024

Non current liabilities 5,636,222 8,815,179

Total Liabilities 11,254,733 12,480,203

Equity

Issued capital 52,008,122 52,008,122

Accumulated losses (2,218,208) (2,859,515)

Total Equity 49,789,914 49,148,607

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

Total profit/(loss) for the year 641,307 (14,413)

Total comprehensive income 641,307 (14,413)

Guarantees 

The parent entity has entered into a Deed of Cross-Guarantee with the effect that the Company guarantees debts in
respect of its subsidiaries.

Further details of the Deed of Cross-Guarantee and the entities subject to the deed are disclosed in note 26.

Contingent liabilities 

The parent entity did not have any contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2020 or 30 June 2019.

Contractual commitments 

The parent entity did not have any commitments as at 30 June 2020 or 30 June 2019.

33. Segment information

Geographical segment

The Group operate in one geographical segment, Australia.

Major customers

The Group has a number of customers to whom it provides services to. During the year, the Group provided mobile
camps to three major customers (2019: three). The most significant customer accounts for 21% (2019: 67%) of the
revenue from mobile camps. During the year the Group provided fixed camps to a number of customers. One
customer accounted for 44% (2019: 58%) of the revenue from fixed camps.
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34. Discontinued operations 

In December 2018, the Group sold Emerald Tourist Park. The loss from discontinued operations is as follows:  

Note

2019

$

Revenue and other income 

Revenue 218,408

Expenses (119,922)

Profit from discontinued operations
before income tax expense 98,486

Income tax expense 8. (260,160)

Total comprehensive loss from
discontinued operations (161,674)

35. Earnings per share 

2020

$

2019

$

Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Group

From continuing operations 3,400,588 5,029,510

From discontinued operations - (161,674)

Profit attributable to equity holders 3,400,588 4,867,836

Number Number

Weighted average number of shares at
the end of the year

Basic 432,875,980 394,456,446

Diluted 432,875,980 405,042,746

Cents Cents

Earnings per share from continuing
operations

Basic earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share

Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Earnings per share from discontinued
operations

Basic earnings per share (cents)

Diluted earnings per share (cents)
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36. Statutory Information

The registered office and principal place of business of the company
is:

Village National Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities

Level 1

647 Stanley Street

Woolloongabba QLD 4102

37. Business Combination

(a) Summary of Acquisition

On 28 May 2019 Village National Holdings Limited acquired 100% of the issued share capital of OICS Holdings Pty
Ltd, an accommodation provider to the oil and gas industry. The acquisition resulted in an increase in the market share
in the industry and is expected to reduce costs through economies of scale.

Amount

Fair value of shares in Village National
Holdings Ltd 2,000,000

Deferred consideration 1,400,000

Enterprise Value 6,600,000

Total purchase consideration 10,000,000

Purchase price adjustments (1,219,419)

Final purchase consideration
transferred 8,780,581

Recognised
on

acquisition at
fair value

Assets and liabilities acquired as a
result of the business combination are
as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 63,042

Receivables 4,232,458

Property, plant and equipment 813,025

Inventories 647,888

Goodwill 4,170,281

Intangibles assets 3,014,183

Deferred tax assets 305,271

Other assets 3,674,849

Payables (5,308,340)

Employee benefit obligations (803,566)

Borrowings (902,130)

Income tax provision (297,480)

Deferred tax liabilities (828,900)

Final purchase consideration 8,780,581

Goodwill is attributable to the embedded workforce of OICS and separately identifiable intangible assets arising from
the business acquisition and will not be deductible for tax purposes. 
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37. Business Combination (continued)
(b) Acquired receivables

The fair value of acquired receivables is $4.2 million which is equal to the gross contractual amount. 

(c) Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of $4.1 million and net profit of $0.6 million for the year ended 30 June
2019.

(d) Purchase consideration cash outflow

2019

$

Outflow of cash to acquire subsidary

Cash consideration 5,380,581

Less: balances acquired

Cash (63,042)

Net outflow of cash 5,317,539

$1.4 million deferred consideration in relation to the business combination was paid in the year ended 30 June 2020.

(e) Acquisition related costs

Acquisition-related costs of $0.1 million are included in other expenses in profit or loss and in operating cash flows in
the statement of cash flows. 
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Directors' Declaration

The directors of the Company declare that:

1. the consolidated financial statements and notes for the year ended 30 June 2020 are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 and:

a. comply with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001 ; and

b. as stated in basis of preparation Note 1. to the consolidated financial statements also with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS); and

c. give a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the consolidated group;

2. In the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Group will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

3. There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the group entities identified in note 27 will be able to
meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee
between the Company and those group entities pursuant to ASIC Legislative Instrument 2017/785.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Director ................................... Director ..............................

Dated   :     8 October 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Village 

National Holdings Limited 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the financial report of Village National Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its 
controlled entities (“the Group”), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 
30 June 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies, 
and the directors’ declaration.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations 
Act 2001, including: 
 

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of its 
financial performance for the year then ended; and  

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.  
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor 
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants “the Code” that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  
 
We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been 
given to the directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the 
time of this auditor’s report. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.  
 
Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Group’s directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2020, but does not 
include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
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In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report  
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a 
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the 
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
Report on the Remuneration Report 
 
Opinion on the Remuneration Report  
 
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in on pages 6 to 10 of the Directors’ Report for 
the period ended 30 June 2020. In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Village National Holdings 
Limited, for the period ended 30 June 2020, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.  
 
Responsibilities  
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the 
Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. 
 

 
 
PITCHER PARTNERS 
 

 
 
Daniel Colwell 
Partner 
 
Brisbane, Queensland 
8 October 2020 
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